
 
 
 

PLANNING BOARD AGENDA 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

Friday, August 23, 2019 at 12:00 p.m. 
Parkdale Room, 2nd Floor, City Hall, (199 Queen Street) 

 

1. Call to Order 

2. Declaration of Conflicts 

3. Approval of Agenda – Approval of Agenda for Friday, August 23, 2019 

4. Adoption of Minutes - Minutes of Planning Board Meeting on Tuesday, August 06, 2019 

5. Business arising from Minutes  

6. Reports: 

a) Others 
1. 320 Capital Drive (PID #387365)  

Update on request regarding the queuing for a drive-thru. Recommendations from traffic 
study.  
 

7. Introduction of New Business 

8. Adjournment of Public Session 



PLANNING AND HERITAGE COMMITTEE – PLANNING BOARD MINUTES 
TUESDAY, AUGUST 06, 2019, 4:30 P.M. 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 2nd FLOOR, CITY HALL 
 
Present: Councillor Greg Rivard, Chair 

Deputy Mayor Jason Coady, Vice-Chair 
Councillor Bob Doiron  
Basil Hambly, RM 
Kris Fournier, RM  
Reg MacInnis, RM  

Rosemary Herbert, RM  
Shallyn Murray, RM 
Alex Forbes, PHM  
Robert Zilke, PII  
Ellen Faye Ganga, PH IA/AA 
 
 

Regrets: Mayor Philip Brown 
Councillor Julie McCabe 
Bobby Kenny, RM 

Greg Morrison, PII 
Laurel Palmer Thompson, PII  

 
1. Call to Order  
Councillor Rivard called the meeting to order at 4:48 pm.  
 
2. Declaration of Conflicts 
Councillor Rivard asked if there are any conflicts. Deputy Mayor Jason Coady declared conflict 
for Item 4: Reconsideration to rezone Royalty Road & Upton Road (PID #388595).  
 
3. Approval of Agenda 
Item 4: Reconsideration to rezone Royalty Road & Upton Road (PID #388595) is taken out of 
the agenda since Councillor Coady declared conflict of interest and therefore, will not have 
quorum to vote on this application. This application will be brought up in the next scheduled 
Planning Board meeting. 
 
Moved by Reg MacInnis, RM and seconded by Basil Hambly, RM, that the agenda for 
Tuesday, August 06, 2019, with the exclusion of item 4, be approved. 

CARRIED 
 

4. Adoption of Minutes 
Rosemary Herbert, RM, noted for clarification regarding the July 02, 2019 meeting minutes for 
the 221 Belvedere Ave application that she would like to see the following changes reflected 
from “Ms. Herbert commented that she has mixed feelings about this application because the 
property looks good as it is right now and asked why this property was not designated as a 
heritage property.” to “Ms. Herbert commented that she has mixed feelings about this 
application because the property looks like it could be a heritage property and asked why the 
property was not designated as such." 
 
Moved by Rosemary Herbert, RM, and seconded by Shallyn Murray, RM, that the minutes 
of the meeting held on Tuesday, July 02, 2019, with the requested changes, be approved. 

CARRIED 
 



Planning Board Meeting 
August 06, 2019 
Page 2 of 8 
 

DRAFT UNTIL REVIEWED BY COMMITTEE 
 

5. Business arising from Minutes 
There was no business arising from minutes. 
 
6. 221 Belvedere Ave (PID #395087) 
This is a request to rezone a portion of the property at 221 Belvedere Ave. from Low Density 
Residential Zone (R-2) to Parking Zone (P) and amend the Official Plan Map from Low Density 
Residential to Commercial. Alex Forbes, PHM, presented the application. Staff noted that the 
Public meeting was held on July 23, 2019. See attached report. 
 
There were concerns raised at the public meeting as outlined in the report. Staff has provided an 
extensive overview of the application. Although the location of the extension of the existing 
parking lot is concealed and will not impact the streetscape on Belvedere Avenue, commercial 
creep will occur in the backyards of adjacent properties. With all the past concerns from previous 
and current application, staff is recommending that this application be rejected. If this application 
is approved however, a development agreement should be in place stating that, appropriate 
landscape buffers must be integrated on the site between the parking lot and the existing 
residential development.  
 
Councillor Rivard commented that all resident members were at the public meeting and is aware 
of the concerns raised by residents. 
 
Councillor Bob Doiron commented that the applicant did his due diligence in terms of putting a 
fence, etc. and is supporting this application. 

 
Councillor Rivard asked for any further comments or questions; there being none, the following 
resolution was put forward: 

Moved by Councillor Bob Doiron, and seconded by Shallyn Murray, RM, that the request 
to: 

a) Amend Appendix “A” – Future Land Use Map of the Official Plan from Low 
Density Residential to Commercial; and 

b) Amend Appendix “G” – Zoning Map of the Zoning & Development Bylaw from 
Low Density Residential (R-2) Zone to Parking (P) Zone; 

for the property at 221 Belvedere Avenue (PID #395087), be recommended to Council for 
approval, subject to a development agreement to provide appropriate landscape buffers 
between the parking lot and adjacent properties. 

CARRIED 
(4-3) 

 
A resident asked about the process and Councillor Rivard responded that the Planning Board is 
a recommending body and that Council makes a final decision at the next Meeting of Council. 
The resident then asked when would be the next meeting of Council. Councillor Rivard noted 
that it will be next Monday, August 13, 2019.  
 



Planning Board Meeting 
August 06, 2019 
Page 3 of 8 
 

DRAFT UNTIL REVIEWED BY COMMITTEE 
 

Mr. Zilke also clarified if the application is approved with the conditions on fence, etc. and 
Councillor Rivard confirmed that the recommendation would include all the conditions that were 
agreed upon at the Public Meeting. 
 
7. 71 & 73 Upper Prince Street (PID #683748 & PID #359521) 
This is a request to rezone both 71 and 73 Upper Prince Street from Low Density Residential (R-
2) Zone to the Medium Density (R-3) Zone and to amend the Official Plan Map from Low 
Density Residential to Medium Density Residential in order to construct six (6) additional 
apartment units to create a twelve (12) unit apartment building Robert Zilke, Planner II, 
presented the application. The Public meeting was held on July 23, 2019. See attached report. 
 
At the public meeting, concerns were raised by residents and the department also received letters 
of objection with the same concerns. The concerns are all outlined in the report and Mr. Zilke 
provided a summary of these concerns to the Board. A tenant of the property in question spoke in 
support of the application. On August 6, 2019, the applicant provided a letter to the Department 
stating his proposals and recommendations to address some of the concerns of the residents.  Mr. 
Zilke provided additional information regarding the capacity of the street and noted that he had a 
conversation with Public Works on the impact of six additional units on the capacity of the 
street.  It was the opinion of Public Works that the impact of 6 additional units would be minimal 
to the overall functional operation of the street. Furthermore, most of the traffic and on-street 
parking resulted from thru traffic avoiding University Ave and residents using the street for free 
parking during the day. Mr. Zilke explained that this area is similar to the adjacent 500 Lot Area 
which is experiencing pressure for growth and conversion of larger older homes into apartments, 
some which has been recommended to be approved by this Board. Due to the low vacancy rate 
(0.2%) that as a City experiences growth it must accommodate additional development through 
infill opportunities in existing serviced areas.    
 
Staff recommends that this application be approved with the conditions stated in the attached 
report.  
 
Before Councillor Rivard opened the floor for questions, he recommended that if this proceeds to 
Council for approval, he would like to include a development agreement and an option for a 
design review aside from the four recommendations or conditions stated by staff.  
 
Shallyn Murray, RM, commented that based on the feedback from the residents, most of the 
concerns were not really particular to the property being rezoned but more on the safety of the 
streets. Ms. Murray also added that if the recommendation could also include some stipulation 
with regards to the traffic concerns which may be directed toward the police. The increase of six 
additional units does not provide a huge impact in that area but the traffic on the street is a real 
issue. Councillor Rivard also added that the traffic issues are not really issues of the applicant, 
but more of a general concern in that area. It may be recommended for the streets to be converted 
into a one way street, but the Fire Department commented that it may hinder them from 
attending to potential fire or emergencies. The Police Department also felt that turning it into a 
one-way street may not be the solution to this issue.  
 



Planning Board Meeting 
August 06, 2019 
Page 4 of 8 
 

DRAFT UNTIL REVIEWED BY COMMITTEE 
 

Rosemary Herbert, RM, commented that there are a number of concerns to the application from 
residents who attended the public meeting and wrote letters. The board should be aware of all 
these concerns. It will be a difficult decision and we have to consider all these inputs and 
oppositions from the residents. 
 
Reg MacInnis, RM, noted that the slides presented by Mr. Zilke did not provide much 
information about the residents’ issues. Mr. MacInnis expressed that we should listen to the 
residents’ concerns. Adding six more units does not satisfy the 0.2% and it sets a precedent for 
other properties to rezone their properties to build more units in the future. Mr. MacInnis feels 
that this particular area has had enough going on and adding six more units may create more 
problems than anticipated. Mr. MacInnis emphasized that we have to start listening to residents. 
 
Councillor Rivard disagreed with Mr. MacInnis’ comment on adding additional six units doesn’t 
impact the 0.2%. Councillor Rivard noted that the additional six units, not necessarily for this 
application but in general, would make a difference to our current housing crisis. 
 
Council Doiron clarified that the current lot is zoned R-2, but the application is requesting a lot 
consolidation as well. Mr. Zilke confirmed that the lot consolidation is part of the application 
since the building has a common property line. Consolidating both lots would result to the 
property adhering to the requirements of the R-2 zone and the R-3 zone. Councillor Doiron also 
asked what would an R-2 zone allow since the existing property already has five units. Mr. Zilke 
responded that early in the 80’s, the property was zoned differently. It was zoned as low density 
but somewhere during this period was converted into an apartment unit. It transitioned from 
being a house to individual apartment units. Since the applicant wants to put additional units, the 
additional units may only be accommodated through a rezoning to R-3. Councillor Doiron also 
clarified that it is in an R-2 zone but has five units now and that the applicants would have asked 
for the board’s approval for the additional units. Mr. Zilke confirmed that the property is a legal 
non-conforming 5-unit dwelling and based on RAP files, there are numerous properties that are 
considered non-conforming units that were allowed or approved prior to the amalgamation of the 
new Bylaw. 
 
Councillor Rivard asked how many units are permitted if the lots were consolidated and Mr. 
Zilke responded that based on consolidation and rezoning, they would be permitted 15 units as-
of-right. Councillor Rivard also noted that the applicant is here to answer any possible questions. 
Mr. Zilke also added that the applicant came to the office today to submit a letter summarizing 
their responses to the residents’ concerns.  
 
Basil Hambly, RM, also asked if the lots would still be consolidated if the application was not 
approved and Mr. Zilke responded that the lots could effectively remain as it is today.  
 
Ms. Herbert also asked if this application is approved, would the proposed renovations to the 
existing building be reviewed by Planning Board. Councillor Rivard responded that we can 
direct the applicants to go through a design review process. There is a separate design review 
board that reviews the proposed changes and we also have a design reviewer who also reviews 



Planning Board Meeting 
August 06, 2019 
Page 5 of 8 
 

DRAFT UNTIL REVIEWED BY COMMITTEE 
 

the application and make recommendations to meet the design criteria requirements. Ms. Herbert 
asked if the design review is done prior to building or construction and Mr. Rivard confirmed. 
 
Councillor Rivard asked for any further comments or questions; there being none, the following 
resolution was put forward: 
 
Moved by Shallyn Murray, RM, and seconded by Kris Fournier, RM, that the request to: 

a) Amend Appendix “A” – Future Land Use Map of the Official Plan from Low Density 
Residential to Medium Density Residential; and 

b) Amend Appendix “G” – Zoning Map of the Zoning & Development Bylaw from Low 
Density Residential (R-2) Zone to Medium Density Residential (R-3) Zone, 

for the properties at 71 & 73 Upper Prince Street (PID #683748 & PID #359521), in order to 
construct six (6) additional apartment units to create an eleven (11) unit apartment building, 
be recommended to Council for approval, subject to the following conditions: 

1. That both of the subject properties are consolidated; and 
2. The two existing access points be delineated as separate but dedicated 

ingress/egress access points; and 
3. That the rezoning be approved as per the development concept proposed by the 

owner as presented in Attachment A.  
4. The applicant be required to sign a Development Agreement outlining any and 

all concerns of Council. 
 

MOTION LOST 
(2-5) 

Councillor Doiron, Councillor Coady, B. Hambly, R.MacInnis, R.Herbert opposed 
 

Moved by Reg MacInnis, RM, and seconded by Basil Hambly, RM, that the request to: 
a) Amend Appendix “A” – Future Land Use Map of the Official Plan from Low 

Density Residential to Medium Density Residential; and 
b) Amend Appendix “G” – Zoning Map of the Zoning & Development Bylaw from 

Low Density Residential (R-2) Zone to Medium Density Residential (R-3) Zone, 
for the properties at 71 & 73 Upper Prince Street (PID #683748 & PID #359521), in order 
to construct six (6) additional apartment units to create an eleven (11) unit apartment 
building, be recommended to Council for rejection. 

 
CARRIED 

(5-2) 
S.Murray, K.Fournier opposed 

 
8. 38 Palmers Lane (PID #275156) 
This is a request to rezone the property at 38 Palmers Lane from Low Density Residential Zone 
(R-2) to Medium Density (R-3) and amend the Official Plan Map from Low Density Residential 
to Medium Density Residential. The purpose is to construct an 18-unit apartment unit. Robert 
Zilke, Planner II, presented the application. See attached report.  
 



Planning Board Meeting 
August 06, 2019 
Page 6 of 8 
 

DRAFT UNTIL REVIEWED BY COMMITTEE 
 

If the application is successfully rezoned, the lot area would only permit 17 apartment units. The 
applicant would then have to apply for a variance application for the additional unit. The subject 
property is bounded to the west and to the north by one and two-unit dwellings. There are 
apartment units to the east and further to the east are commercial properties. While the proposed 
development would not be considered a spot zone and technically could be considered to be 
compatible with the adjoining properties and such development would provide housing choices 
within the neighbourhood, the main issue remains to be the shifting of a higher density 
residential zone further into a low density mature neighbourhood. Staff recommendation is not to 
proceed to public consultation. Greg Munn, representative of the applicant, is here to answer any 
possible questions. 
 
Mr. Rivard clarified if the adjacent buildings are apartments, including those along the 
commercial zone and Mr. Zilke confirmed.  Mr. Munn provided additional details with regards 
to the proposed development.  
 
Ms. Herbert clarified that traffic is not an issue along Palmers Lane. Mr. Zilke noted that he is 
not able to comment on that but the area is a low density area. Mr. Doiron also added that there 
are two speed bumps along that road and a stop sign in the middle to slow down the speed of 
traffic. Mr. Doiron then asked what is existing in that property, if it is a single-family dwelling or 
a duplex. Mr. Forbes responded that is a vacant lot.  Mr. Doiron then clarified that the request is 
to rezone from R-2 to R-3 and Mr. Zilke confirmed. Councillor Rivard added that an R-3 would 
allow 17 units as-of-right and they are asking for 18 units. Mr. Zilke confirmed. Councillor 
Rivard asked that if this property was rezoned, would they be willing to drop to 17 or keep it at 
18. Mr. Munn said that they can make 17 units work. Mr. Rivard asked Mr. Zilke if staff 
recommendation is to reject the request to proceed to a public meeting. Mr. Zilke confirmed and 
this is based on the scale and context of the area, and the transition from low density to medium 
density.   
 
Mr. Rivard asked if they built a single detached home in that lot, it would have the same effect to 
the adjacent apartment building that currently exists. Either way, it may create some problems. 
Building a single detached home adjacent to the apartment will also be out of character. Mr. 
MacInnis commented that it will not, if you look to the left of the area. Mr. Forbes also added 
that if one really wants the property/lot, they would not necessarily be concerned with building a 
single family dwelling beside an apartment building because the apartment building is already 
there.  People who are well established in a neighbourhood are much more concerned about a 
proposed increase in density. Also, Mr. Forbes noted that there have been previous applications 
dating back to 2009 to rezone the property to R-4 to be able to construct a 24-unit apartment and 
the application has gone through public consultation and has heard comments from the residents. 
Mr. MacInnis asked when this property was bought by the current applicant. Mr. Forbes and Mr. 
Zilke do not have this information available. Councillor Rivard added that the applicant also 
owns the apartment units adjacent to it.  
 
Mr. Hambly asked how many units are there in the adjacent apartment units. Mr. Munn 
responded that there are 12 units each.  
 



Planning Board Meeting 
August 06, 2019 
Page 7 of 8 
 

DRAFT UNTIL REVIEWED BY COMMITTEE 
 

Ms. Murray asked that if the process at this time is to recommend to proceed to a public meeting 
and Mr. Rivard confirmed. Mr. Rivard also added that while there is a housing crisis, we do not 
want to give the appearance that we are unwilling to even entertain a public meeting.  He 
suggested that we should hear the comments from the public and then Council can make a much 
more informed decision.  Mr. Forbes commented that the decision to reject going to a public 
meeting should be based upon the fact that the Planning Board and Council have a very good 
understanding of the anticipated response that they may receive from the residents, or based on 
recent feedback in the area to a similar application.   If residents are known to be strongly 
opposed to a project because of a recent similar application in the area, the board could 
recommend not to proceed to a public hearing.  If the Board does not know the response in 
advance, then they may wish to recommend to go to public hearing.  
 
Mr. Doiron added that there is a school in that area and that there are some calls on speeding (it 
being a cut-through from St. Peters to Mt. Edward Rd.) even there are speed bumps, stop signs 
and police patrolling the area. Mr. MacInnis asked where the nearest R-3 zone is from that area. 
Mr. Zilke noted that it is not shown in the current map. Ms. Murray feels that this is not hugely 
out of scale or context and would like that this proposal proceed to a public meeting. 
 
Councillor Rivard asked for any further comments or questions; there being none, the following 
resolution was put forward: 
 
Moved by Shallyn Murray, RM, and seconded by Rosemary Herbert, RM, that the request 
to: 

a) Amend Appendix “A” the Official Land Use Map of the City of Charlottetown from 
Low Density Residential to Medium Density Residential; and  

b) Amend Appendix “G” – Zoning Map of the Charlottetown Zoning and 
Development Bylaw from R-2 (Low Density Residential) Zone to R-3 (Medium 
Density Residential) Zone; 

for the at 38 Palmers Lane (PID #275156), in order to construct an 18-unit apartment 
building, be recommended to Council to proceed to public consultation. 

CARRIED 
(6-1) 

Councillor Doiron opposed 
 

9. 229 Sherwood Road (PID #1007657and a portion of PID #145961) 
This is an application to consolidate 229 Sherwood Road (PID #1007657) and a portion of PID 
#145961 in order to extend the lands of Island EMS. Alex Forbes, PHM, presented the 
application. See attached report. Staff recommendation is to approve the application. 
 
Councillor Rivard asked about the setback requirements and Mr. Forbes responded that it is just 
a consolidation and if they want to expand or build anything further, they would have to come 
through the department again. 
 
Councillor Rivard asked for any further comments or questions; there being none, the following 
resolution was put forward: 



Planning Board Meeting 
August 06, 2019 
Page 8 of 8 
 

DRAFT UNTIL REVIEWED BY COMMITTEE 
 

 
Moved by Councillor Bob Doiron and seconded by Reg MacInnis, RM, that the request to 
consolidate 229 Sherwood Road (PID #1007657) and a portion of PID #145961, be 
recommended to Council for approval, subject to a final pinned survey.  

CARRIED 
 
 
10. 320 Capital Drive (PID #387365) 
Alex Forbes, PHM, noted that this application will not be presented this evening and that there 
are no decisions that have to be made at this time. The applicants anticipated that they would be 
prepared to present their application this evening but unfortunately, they were unable to have the 
traffic study completed in time. This application will be presented to the board when the traffic 
study is ready for this property. A special meeting may be requested at that time. The various fit 
up building permit applications for this property are on hold until the access point along 
Maypoint Roint is resolved. 
 
Councillor Rivard asked if there are plans to run that road from Hampton Inn down to North 
River Road. Mr. Rivard added that the vehicles from the drive thru would go out onto Capital 
Drive and not onto Maypoint Road which may cause congestion along Beach Grove Road. Mr. 
Forbes responded that these concerns will be addressed as a part of the traffic study. Mr. Forbes 
also added that there is an urgency to get the drive-thru approved in order to get all the other 
permits that are not related to the drive-thru along this property approved.  
 
11. New Business 
Alex Forbes, PHM, noted that there is another report to make amendments to the Zoning & 
Development Bylaw. No decision has to be made at this time but Robert Zilke will provide the 
board a brief summary of the proposed amendments. These amendments will be presented in 
detail in the next board meeting. 
 
Mr. Zilke presented the amendments to the Zoning & Development Bylaw as it pertains to 1) 
Calculation of Numerical Requirements & measurements; 2) Attached Garages and Carports; 3) 
Non-conforming buildings; and 4) Marijuana Production Facility Parking Space Requirements.   
 
12. Adjournment of Public Session 
 
Moved by Reg MacInnis, RM, and seconded by Deputy Mayor Jason Coady, that the 
meeting be adjourned. The meeting was adjourned at 5: 45 p.m. 
           CARRIED 
 
  
_______________________ 
Councillor Greg Rivard, Chair 






























































































	Planning Board Agenda - August 23 2019.pdf
	02 08 Planning Board Minutes - August 6 2019_DRAFT
	03 Report

